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Dear Acting Captain Altorfer:

Our office has completed its review of the materials related to Recommendation 47.1
that have been submitted to us as part of the collaborative reform process. After
reviewing the package and information provided by the Department, the California
Department of Justice finds as follows:

Recommendation 47.1: The SFPD should develop and implement a community policing
practices review and development process within 90 days of the issuance of this report
so SFPD units can collaborate regarding community policing efforts.

Response to Recommendation 47.1:

Since 2017, SFPD has conducted two separate surveys (one in 2017 and the other in
2020) to assess the community’s perception of SFPD’s service to the community. The
2020 survey is posted on SFPD’s website in a section entitled “Community Surveys” and
community members can still take this survey. SFPD’s Executive Sponsor Working Group
on Bias (Bias Working Group), which has been tasked with developing a strategic plan on
bias and revising SFPD’s policies related to bias, developed the 2020 survey questions.
To advertise the 2020 survey, district station captains advertised it in their newsletters,
community meetings, and SFPD’s social media (including Twitter). One month after this
advertising campaign, the Commander for the Community Engagement Division (CED)
asked district station captains to send direct emails to community members on their
mailing lists to encourage survey participation.

After receiving 86 responses, the Bias Working Group reviewed the results, though it
acknowledged the survey results were not comprehensive. At the time that SFPD
prepared this package, 83.67% of survey participants had never experienced biased
policing in San Francisco.




As of the date of this email, SFPD has received roughly 198 responses and 74.09% of
survey participants had never experienced biased policing in San Francisco. As part of
the survey, SFPD asked survey participants to rank the tools or methods to decrease bias
in order of importance. These tools or methods include training, hiring/recruitment, and
data collection and analysis. Survey respondents overwhelmingly listed training as the
most important. SFPD notes that its Bias strategic plan, drafted by the Bias Working
Group, provides recommendations for the Department on each of the tools or methods
listed in the survey.

The CED is working with the Media Relations Unit to coordinate quarterly social media
and other advertising campaigns to garner responses to this survey, among others. This
suffices as ongoing use of surveys to measure fair and impartial policing.

Based upon all of the above, the Department of Justice finds that SFPD is in substantial
compliance with this recommendation. While SFPD is substantially compliant with this
recommendation, the California Department of Justice has previously recommended
that the survey be modified.

As a threshold matter, the California Department of Justice commends SFPD for working
with the Bias Working Group to design this survey and believes that the survey
guestions are a good starting point. It is the California Department of Justice’s
understanding that the Bias Working Group designed the questions with the perspective
that SFPD would refine them at a later point. Given this, the California Department of
Justice recommends that the SFPD revisit these survey questions and identify more
specific questions that will better help it measure the fair and impartial treatment of
community members. SFPD could refine the questions through the Bias Working Group
or it could first work with other entities or stakeholders, like an academic researcher or
the Department of Police Accountability, to develop new survey questions and then ask
the Bias Working Group’s feedback and edits to those questions.

Regardless of how the SFPD revises these questions, the Department of Justice
recommends that the survey questions seek information about respondents’
experiences with specific forms of biased policing, if any. For example, rather than
asking the survey participant if they have “personally experienced biased policing in San
Francisco,” the survey could ask participants something more direct, such as “Do you
believe that SFPD officers have discriminated against you because of [insert identity
group, such as race, gender identity, or religion]?” The survey could also provide survey
participants an opportunity to describe their experiences in a narrative field and provide
a link to the process for filing a civilian complaint, as the California Department of
Justice has previously recommended.

Finally, the California Department of Justice recommends that SFPD reconsider asking
guestions about the survey participants’ awareness of various SFPD policies and
practices related to bias. (For example, there is a question that states: “Did you know
that the SFPD has convened a public stakeholder working group to develop a strategy to
minimize bias across all dimensions of its work and to update its policies on investigative
detentions, bias-free policing, and discrimination, retaliation, and harassment?”) While
these types of questions may be helpful in giving SFPD some context as to the survey
participant’s perspective on SFPD and whether the SFPD has effectively communicated



their work on bias, these questions are not designed to aid the Department in
measuring whether officers are providing fair and impartial treatment. Instead, SFPD
could preface these types of questions by providing survey participants the specific
reasons why SFPD is asking these questions.

Finally, the California Department of Justice recommends that SFPD evaluate survey
responses not just in the aggregate but also evaluate responses within specific City
districts as well as among people within certain identity groups (such as evaluating
survey responses of all people who identify as transgender). These types of evaluations
will better help the Department identify any gaps in its services.

Please let us know if you have any questions or would like to discuss these further.

Tanya

Tanya S. Koshy (she/her)
Deputy Attorney General

Civil Rights Enforcement Section
California Department of Justice
1515 Clay Street, Suite 2100
Oakland, CA 94612






































